
 

               

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes                                       Page 1                                               May 2, 2016 

Office of Board of Selectmen 
143 Main Street, P.O. Box 310, Belmont, New Hampshire 03220-0310 

Telephone: (603) 267-8300  Fax: (603) 267-8327 

 

 

 

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes 

 

Monday, May 2, 2016 5:00 p.m. 

 

Corner Meeting House 

 

 

 Chairman Ruth Mooney called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Also present were 

Selectman Jon Pike, Selectman Ronald Cormier, Town Administrator Jeanne Beaudin, 

Administrative Assistant Cary Lagace, Public Works Director Jim Fortin, Kevin Sturgeon, Tom 

Murphy, Chief Erickson, Senator Hosmer, Lt. Newhall, and several other community members. 

 

Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

  

Minutes 

 

 Selectman Pike moved the minutes of April 18, 2016 as written. Chairman Mooney 

seconded and the motion passed unanimously. Selectman Cormier abstained. 

 

Abatements, Manifests, Exemptions & Credits  
 

 Chairman Mooney moved to approve the abatements, manifests, exemptions and credits; 

seconded by Selectman Pike, unanimously approved. 

 

Senator Hosmer – Legislative Update 

 

  Senator Hosmer advised the Board that there are several bills relating to the drug 

epidemic that are working their way through the process as well as they are working on programs 

to deal with making narcan available. There has been a bill signed by the Governor making the 

possession of fentanyl criminal, they are working on making a consistency on opioid 

prescriptions and funding for treatment and recovery in communities. Additionally they are 

working on sober living places in the house. There is a lot more work to do on the Drug front. 

They are working on getting AG’s office more funding and Medicaid expansion for treatment. 

They feel with proper care individuals will not end up with the acute conditions and they can 

reverse the trend of ER treatment.  

 

He noted that he has worked with TA Beaudin on WRBP projects and feels this is a great 

achievement with the clean water in the Lakes Region. He indicated that he is aware that there is 

an issue with maintenance and he is trying to make sure the program has the flexibility and 

funding to run the program affectively.  He acknowledged that he is aware of the concerns that 

the Board has expressed to the Department of Transportation regarding the project on Route 106. 

He was sent a letter to Mr. Cass explaining his concerns with shoulders as viewed by him and 

others that should have been addressed and he will continue to pressure them to get a resolution. 

Chairman Mooney commented that the bid for the project has already been awarded so there 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 2 May 2, 2016 

may need to be a change order if the issues are to be addressed. Selectman Pike commented that 

the head of DOT said it would be done, they own the right of way and it should be done 

properly. The Board thanked the Senator for his support with this issue. Chairman Mooney 

reminded that the intersection of Route 140 and Main Street has not been completely resolved 

either and the amount of traffic for the races isn’t going to change. Senator Hosmer indicated that 

there is a new Commissioner of Transportation and he intends to invite her to come around and 

view what is being talked about.  

 

Senator Hosmer indicated that he is still working on getting aid to cities and town 

reinstated. It was taken away several years ago and he hasn’t been happy with the downshift to 

municipalities. Board expressed their appreciation of the Senator going out of the way for 

Belmont. TA Beaudin expressed appreciation for WRBP too. 

 

Special Events Street Closure Request 
 

TA Beaudin received from Gretta the request for street closures in the area of the 

Pavilion on May 29th for the Community Street Dance. Last year the Board approved the lower 

end of parking lot and Mill Street to Center Street. It was noted that there was a fairly good 

turnout last year for this event. TA Beaudin noted that the Public Works Department helps out 

significantly with barriers and such.  

 

Selectman Cormier move to accept the road closures as requested for the Community 

Street Dance. Selectman Pike seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  

 

Main Street Discussion – Kevin Sturgeon 
 

 Kevin Sturgeon commented that the Board wants to get truck traffic off Main Street with 

the Wareing Road improvements and asked to confirm that the number one priority is safety? 

The Board agreed. Kevin went on to ask if the number two priority is infrastructure. Chairman 

Mooney expressed that there really isn’t a priority list for Main Street. Kevin explained that he 

has measured Main Street and it is 22 feet wide at its narrowest which requires large vehicles 

passing in opposite directions to yield to one another. Kevin went on to explain that the Dalton 

pit is also on Shaker Road and they typically haul out Shaker Road. Kevin indicated that his idea 

to eliminate even more truck traffic on Main Street would be to have the “no thru trucking” 

removed from South Road. Additional truck traffic could be diverted that way. 

 

 Chairman Mooney indicated that the Board would take Kevin’s comments and 

suggestion under advisement.  

  

CDBG Grant Administrator Proposals – Solar Village 
 

 TA Beaudin reviewed with the Board the three proposals for the CDBG grant 

administrator for the Solar Village grant. She noted the proposals as follows; Donna Lane 

$12,500; BluLynx Solutions $13,500; AECm $14,500. TA Beaudin noted that she is 

recommending Donna Lane because not only is she low bidder but she has done numerous grants 

in the past for the Town and she has worked with Solar Village to write the grant and is familiar 

with the project. She has always done a great job and is very knowledgeable of the community. 

 

Selectman Pike moved accept Donna Lane as the grant administrator for the Solar 

Village project at $12,500 as proposed. Selectman Cormier seconded and the motion passed 

unanimously. 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 3 May 2, 2016 

Fire Department New Hire 

 

Chief Erikson explained that following a committee review he is recommending the 

hiring of Thomas Newman; he is an NHTI graduate and student firefighter in Gilmanton, he is 

currently working at Concord Hospital as am ER Tech. Additionally he is a member of the 

National Guard.  TA Beaudin indicated that he would be hire at grade 9 step 4 which is 

consistent with previous hiring’s. Following probation he would go to a step 5. It was noted that 

William Theheimer has submitted his resignation and will be going to Derry, the Town wishes 

him well. It was noted that the Department still has one vacancy. 

 

Selectman Pike moved to hire Thomas Newman as recommended. Selectman Cormier 

seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 

 

Heritage Preservation Fair 

 

  TA Beaudin advised the Board that she had received information from Linda Frawley on 

the Heritage Preservation Fair on Saturday May 21st. She note that the Chairman Mooney will be 

reading a proclamation. Additionally the Heritage Commission has purchased a granite marker 

and the location for the marker is still being determined. 

 

Wareing Road – Additional Paving Cost 

 

TA Beaudin explained that the Board had requested 2 meetings ago that she get the cost 

for additional paving of the last section of Wareing Road. The engineers estimated the cost for 

engineering, surveying, design and paving to be $125,000-$165,000 which includes $27,000 for 

engineering. It was noted that the low bid was $316,000 for the project which is 2500 feet of 

road in the first section. Chairman Mooney expressed that $27,000 for engineering is outrageous 

and she would like to discuss engineering at the Board’s next meeting and look at what the 

community is paying for engineering. Selectman Pike commented that if you look at the last 

1100 feet you don’t have the drainage and such that the first section has and the cost is actually 

higher. Chairman Mooney suggested that they not do the last section at this time and then when 

the job gets going, talk with contractor at an appropriate step and perhaps do the last section as a 

change order. Selectman Pike commented that it’s the best part to just pave and he doesn’t see 

the need for engineering.  

 

Jim Fortin expressed that there maybe some saving on first part and that could be utilized 

to fund the last section. Chairman Mooney commented that the Town used have a guy to consult 

with regarding projects. TA Beaudin noted that the Town has used other engineering firms on 

recent projects. It was noted that the project is waiting for wetlands permit and an outstanding 

easement from the Wareing’s to get under way. TA Beaudin explained that the Wareing’s are 

looking for compensation; she has offered $100 for the easement which would be the typical 

offering for an easement of this type. The Board agreed that the $100 was reasonable and 

recommended moving to relocate the drainage if an agreement with the Wareing’s cannot be 

reached. 

 

Sargent Park Bath House 

 

Selectman Pike asked how many months a year is the bath house going to be used; TA 

Beaudin indicated between May and October. She noted that Janet is having trouble staffing park 

attendant position as well as the lifeguards. The publicity about drug and homeless problem near 

the beach has deterred interest in the positions. TA Beaudin noted that Lt. Newhall is working on 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 4 May 2, 2016 

a program to look at what is going on there. Selectman Pike expressed that we are creating a 

bathhouse with a drainage issue; so if not used all the time it will create a problem. He suggested 

the use of the bathrooms at the pavilion and the bank building if the Recreation Department is 

moved there. There was concern of the project costing up to $50,000. TA Beaudin indicated that 

everything is included in the estimate of $35,000. Selectman Cormier expressed that if you are at 

the Park with a group and one needs to go to the restroom then it creates a problem. Selectman 

Pike suggested sprucing up the current bath house; he was advised that it isn’t handicap 

accessible and the goal was to move it from its current location.  

 

Selectman Cormier asked where these numbers are from and what happened to working 

with Correctional Industries; TA Beaudin explained that they haven’t been able to get through to 

him after repeated attempts they got pricing elsewhere. She added that $35,000 includes 

everything and the project was approved for $40,000. She noted that Deware quoted $30,200 for 

the concrete work and construction, electric has been estimated at $1,380 and the plumbing has 

been estimated at $2.300. Selectman Cormier expressed his frustration that no one reached out to 

him about the Correctional Industries and indicated that he will look into it and the Board can 

discuss it further at their next meeting. TA Beaudin expressed concern about how quickly the 

project could be done as the funding was already carried over from the prior year. Selectman 

Pike offered that they have prepaid for other things under contract for the next year. It was noted 

that the Huot Center couldn’t do the project because of other commitments. Selectman Pike 

commented that if they wait a year, it could be a savings of $16,000. The Board agreed to discuss 

it further at their next meeting. 

 

Miscellaneous 

 

 The Board re-signed the Northway Bank; Hoadley Road funding due to the change from 

$375,000 to $330,000. 

 

 Chairman Mooney opened the floor to public comment. Kevin Sturgeon read a few notes 

from the Planning Board minutes pertaining to the approval of the new entrance onto Wareing 

Road from the Parent Sand & Gravel pit. He noted that all traffic was to exit onto Wareing Road, 

and wanted confirmation that traffic exiting on to Shaker Road in an emergency would exit to the 

left. Selectman Pike commented that the amount of traffic on Main Street with the new plan 

versus no change will be significantly different. Chairman Mooney expressed that they are not 

going to totally remove truck traffic no matter what changes are make. Kevin began to discuss 

the paving of Wareing Road again; with Selectman Pike commenting that many years ago the 

Board at the time; including Selectman Cormier decided that roads where going to be done right 

and the Board has done the best they can to stick with that decision. Selectman Cormier 

commented that he has been involved with the paving of 15-20 miles of the Towns 30+ miles of 

roads and he has never heard a road discussed as much as Wareing Road and thinks enough is 

enough.. Kevin began to ask additional questions when Chairman Mooney used her gavel to end 

further discussion noting that the Board had made the decision not to pursue paving the end of 

Wareing Road at this time. 

  

Non-Public Session 

 

 Chairman Ruth Mooney moved to enter non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-

A: 3 II (a-c) at 5:55 pm; Selectman Pike seconded the motion. Roll call was taken Ronald 

Cormier, Jon Pike and Ruth Mooney. Also present was Town Administrator Jeanne Beaudin and 

Fire Chief Erickson. 

 



 
Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes Page 5 May 2, 2016 

 Chairman Mooney closed the non-public session at 7:30 p.m.           .  

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

            

      Ruth P. Mooney, Chairman 

 

 

            

      Ronald Cormier, Vice Chairman 

 

 

            

      Jon Pike 


